

(1ST EXTRAORDINARY SESSION)
ENROLLED HOUSE
BILL NO. 1002

By: Steidley, Askins and
Glover of the House

and

Hobson of the Senate

An Act relating to truth in sentencing; amending 21 O.S. 1991, Section 9, as amended by Section 13, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 9), which relates to punishment of felonies; amending Sections 2, 3 and 5, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Sections 12, 13 and 15), which relate to sentencing policy and procedures; amending Section 22, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 18), which relates to second and subsequent misdemeanor offenses that remain misdemeanors; amending Section 9, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 701.17), which relates to the death penalty; amending 21 O.S. 1991, Section 850, as last amended by Section 1 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2571 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to malicious intimidation because of race; amending 21 O.S. 1991, Section 1533, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 405, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 1533), which relates to false personation and false assertion of authority; amending Sections 2, 3, 4 and 5 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1215 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to crimes involving certain telecommunications devices; amending 22 O.S. 1991, Section 857, as amended by Section 17, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 857), which relates to jury deliberations; amending Section 56, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 987.18), which relates to assessment and evaluation; amending Section 8, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 990a-1), which relates to sentencing procedures; amending 22 O.S. 1991, Section 991a-4, as last amended by Section 20, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 991a-4), which relates to the Community Service Sentencing Program; amending 57 O.S. 1991, Section 138, as last amended by Section 5 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to earned credits; amending 57 O.S. 1991, Section 332.7, as last amended by Section 6 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to parole consideration; amending 57 O.S. 1991, Section 570, as amended by Section 32, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (57 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 570),

which relates to the Oklahoma Prison Overcrowding Emergency Powers Act; amending 66 O.S. 1991, Section 304, as last amended by Section 2 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 260 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to the Railroad Revitalization Act; providing for scheduling of crimes; amending 69 O.S. 1991, Section 1705, as last amended by Section 3 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2731 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to the Oklahoma Turnpike Authority; amending Section 6 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1357 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, which relates to the Oklahoma Antitrust Reform Act; amending Section 612, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, Section 45, Chapter 293, O.S.L. 1997, Section 28, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997, and Section 8, Chapter 420, O.S.L. 1997, which relate to effective dates; amending Section 606, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, which relates to a repealer; modifying effective date for certain provisions of the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act and related provisions; providing penalties for certain crimes committed prior to the effective date of the main sentencing matrix; modifying eligibility for parole consideration; providing that certain parole hearing shall be conducted in two stages; providing procedure; providing that certain inmates shall not be reconsidered for parole within a certain time, with exception; and declaring an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 21 O.S. 1991, Section 9, as amended by Section 13, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 9), is amended to read as follows:

Section 9. A. For offenses committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, every offense declared to be a felony shall be punished according to the applicable sentencing level. If a specific fine is provided for by law, the fine may be imposed as provided in subsection C of Section 64 of this title.

B. For offenses committed before July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, except in cases where a different punishment is prescribed by this title, or by some existing provision of law, every offense declared to be a felony is punishable by a fine not exceeding One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), or by imprisonment in the State Penitentiary not exceeding two (2) years, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY Section 2, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 12), is amended to read as follows:

Section 12. A. A person committing a felony offense on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, and convicted of the offense shall be required to serve a minimum amount of the sentence of incarceration or community punishment imposed. A person convicted of crimes in Schedule A, B, C, D, D-1, S-1, S-2 or S-3 shall serve not less than eighty-five percent (85%) of the sentence of imprisonment imposed within the Department of Corrections unless eligible for parole pursuant to subsection B of Section 332.7 of Title 57 of the

Oklahoma Statutes. A person convicted of crimes in the other schedules shall serve not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the sentence of imprisonment imposed within the Department of Corrections unless eligible for parole pursuant to subsection B of Section 332.7 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes. The person shall not be eligible for earned credits which have the effect of reducing the length of sentence of imprisonment by more than fifteen percent (15%).

B. Any person committing a criminal offense on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, and sentenced by a court, shall be sentenced in accordance with the ranges of punishments established by the matrices provided for in Sections ~~598~~ 20.1 through ~~601~~ 20.4 of this ~~act~~ title.

C. This section shall not affect the power of the court to suspend or defer a sentence, if authorized by law.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY Section 3, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 13), is amended to read as follows:

Section 13. A. The policy of this state is to sentence persons convicted of felonies pursuant to sentencing matrices. The initial matrices shall be as provided in Sections ~~598~~ 20.1 through ~~601~~ 20.4 of this ~~act~~ title. These matrices shall remain in effect until such time as new matrices are established pursuant to subsection B of this section.

B. Beginning July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, felonies shall be classified pursuant to Section ~~6~~ 16 of this ~~act~~ title, except for Schedule A, and shall be punished as provided by the sentencing matrices in accordance with the application of any sentencing enhancers established by the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act.

1. Beginning ~~1999~~ 2000 and each year thereafter, by December 1 the Department of Corrections shall submit to the Oklahoma Sentencing Commission or successor agency a report of projected financial and bed space impact that will include an assessment of any need for additional resources for bed space under current sentencing ranges.

2. By January 15 of the year following receipt of the assessment of need by the Department of Corrections, the Commission or successor agency shall certify to the Governor and the Legislature whether or not changes are needed in either the matrices or in correctional facility capacity to ensure that offenders serve the minimum percentage amount of incarceration required by the Truth in Sentencing Act. This report shall include fiscal impact statements of the cost of any proposed change in correctional capacity, and an alternative matrix and fiscal impact therefor.

3. The Commission or successor agency, by rule, shall promulgate one or more adjusted matrices to take effect July 1 of the year that certification is made to the Legislature pursuant to paragraph 2 of this subsection, in the event the Legislature does not provide the resources appropriate for the additional capacity needed by the Department of Corrections or other sources of revenue do not become available.

4. A new matrix, if necessary, shall be promulgated in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, except as provided in this section. The Commission or successor agency shall not adopt a new matrix by emergency rule except as provided in paragraph 5 of this subsection. Any permanent rule adopting a new matrix shall be submitted to the Governor within a sufficient time so that, if approved by the Governor, the rule shall be submitted to the Legislature by April 1 of the year in which the Commission or successor agency wishes to implement the matrix. If the Legislature

does not either disapprove the matrix before the sine die adjournment of the legislative session in which the rule was submitted or provide total funding for needed resources, the matrix shall become effective on July 1 of the same year. If the Governor disapproves the rule or the Legislature provides partial funding for needed resources, the Commission or successor agency, by rule, shall promulgate a revised adjusted matrix.

5. If the revised adjusted matrix cannot be promulgated and submitted to the Legislature by April 1, the Commission or successor agency may promulgate the revised adjusted matrix by emergency rule.

6. Any matrix adopted by the Commission or successor agency, which is not disapproved, shall be published as an appendix to ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title.

SECTION 4. AMENDATORY Section 5, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 15), is amended to read as follows:

Section 15. A. On and after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, criminal offenses shall be punished as provided by the sentencing matrices and in accordance with the application of any sentencing enhancers authorized by the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act.

B. For purposes of sentencing:

1. The main matrix shall be applied in felony cases for crimes that are classified pursuant to Section ~~6 16~~ of this ~~act~~ title as a Schedule A, Schedule B, Schedule C, Schedule D, Schedule D-1, Schedule D-2, Schedule E, Schedule F, Schedule G, or Schedule H crime committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999;

2. The sentencing matrix entitled "Intoxicant Crimes Involving a Vehicle Matrix" shall be applied in cases which are intoxicant crimes involving a vehicle that are classified as Schedule I-1, I-2, or Schedule I-3 crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999;

3. The sentencing matrix entitled "Drug Crimes Matrix" shall be applied in cases involving controlled dangerous substance offenses that are classified as Schedule N-1, Schedule N-2, Schedule N-3, Schedule N-4, or Schedule N-5 crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999; and

4. The sentencing matrix entitled "Sex Crimes Matrix" shall be applied in cases involving sexual offenses that are classified as Schedule S-1, Schedule S-2, Schedule S-3, or Schedule S-4 crimes.

C. The ranges of punishment for each level in the schedules shall be established as provided in Section ~~6 16~~ of this ~~act~~ title. Provided, however, Schedule A shall be subject to the criminal provisions of Sections 701.7 through 701.16 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title.

D. A sentencing matrix is a crime severity and criminal history classification tool. The sentencing matrix determines crime severity of the current offense of conviction according to sentencing level. The sentencing level classifies the severity of the circumstances of the offense and the criminal history of the offender.

E. A sentencing matrix, except for Schedule A, defines the possible terms of confinement or community punishment.

F. A sentencing matrix does not establish fines or other conditions of a sentence. Fines for the commission of a criminal offense shall be as provided by law and conditions of sentence dispositions are provided for by Section 991a of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

G. The sentences provided for in the matrices shall be:

1. Field 1 - Sentencing to the Department of Corrections;
2. Field 2 - Sentencing to either the Department of Corrections or community punishment, at the option of the court. If the

sentence is to community punishment, sentencing shall be pursuant to Section 991a-2 of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes or subsection B of Section ~~46 987.8 of this act~~ Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

3. Field 3 - Sentencing to community punishment pursuant to Section 991a-2 of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes or subsection B of Section ~~46 987.8 of this act~~ Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes; or

4. Field 4 - Sentencing to community punishment pursuant to Section 991a-2 of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes or subsection B of Section ~~46 987.8 of this act~~ Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

SECTION 5. AMENDATORY Section 22, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 18), is amended to read as follows:

Section 18. A. Unless otherwise provided by law, for any crime listed in subsection B of this section that is originally a misdemeanor and that, prior to July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, would be a felony for a second or subsequent offense, the crime shall remain a misdemeanor for second and subsequent offenses committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999.

B. This section shall apply to the following crimes:

1. Violation of the Consumer Protection Act, as provided for in Section 761.1 of Title 15 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

2. Administration of certain substances or performance of certain surgical procedures to alter appearance of livestock, as provided for in Section 1229 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

3. Unlawful reproduction for sale of sound recording or audiovisual work, as provided for in Section 1976 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

4. Unlawful sale or offer for sale of sound recording, as provided for in Section 1977 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

5. Unlawful transfer of article or sound recording or performance for unauthorized sale, as provided for in Section 1978 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

6. Advertisement, rental, sale, resale, distribution or circulation of article without actual true name of manufacturer, as provided for in Section 1979 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

7. Counterfeit labels, as provided for in Section 1980 of ~~Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title;

8. Possession of marihuana, as provided for in Section 2-402 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

9. Violating tax code by shipping, transporting, receiving, possessing, selling, distributing, or purchasing contraband cigarettes, as provided for in Section 349 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

10. Violating tax code by shipping, transporting, receiving, possessing, selling, distributing, or purchasing contraband tobacco products, as provided for in Section 426 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes; and

11. Violating sales tax code by improper permit to do business, as provided for in Section 1364 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

SECTION 6. AMENDATORY Section 9, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 701.17), is amended to read as follows:

Section 701.17 Nothing in the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act shall abrogate or affect the punishment by death in all crimes

punishable by death before July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, or made punishable by death on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999.

SECTION 7. AMENDATORY 21 O.S. 1991, Section 850, as last amended by Section 1 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2571 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 850. A. No person shall maliciously and with the specific intent to intimidate or harass another person because of that person's race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability:

1. Assault or batter another person;
2. Damage, destroy, vandalize or deface any real or personal property of another person; or
3. Threaten, by word or act, to do any act prohibited by paragraph 1 or 2 of this subsection if there is reasonable cause to believe that such act will occur.

B. No person shall maliciously and with specific intent to incite or produce, and which is likely to incite or produce, imminent violence, which violence would be directed against another person because of that person's race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability, make or transmit, cause or allow to be transmitted, any telephonic, computerized, or electronic message.

C. No person shall maliciously and with specific intent to incite or produce, and which is likely to incite or produce, imminent violence, which violence would be directed against another person because of that person's race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability, broadcast, publish, or distribute, cause or allow to be broadcast, published or distributed, any message or material.

D. Any person convicted of violating any provision of subsections A, B or C of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor on a first offense and a Schedule E felony on a second or subsequent offense committed on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title and a felony punishable by not more than ten (10) years incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a second or subsequent offense committed before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. The fine for a felony violation of this section shall not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00). Furthermore, said person shall be civilly liable for any damages resulting from any violation of this section.

E. Upon conviction, any person guilty of a misdemeanor in violation of this section shall be punishable by the imposition of a fine not exceeding One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), or by imprisonment in the county jail for a period of not more than one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

F. The Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation shall develop a standard system for state and local law enforcement agencies to report incidents of crime which are apparently directed against members of racial, ethnic, religious groups or other groups specified by this section to the Bureau within seventy-two (72) hours of the time such incidents are reported to such agencies. All law enforcement agencies shall report to the OSBI, pursuant to such system, incidents of crime which are apparently directed against members of racial, ethnic, religious groups or other groups specified by this section and further provide information on the disposition of the reported incident. The Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation shall promulgate rules, regulations and procedures necessary to develop, implement and maintain a standard system for the collection and reporting of hate crime data.

G. No person, partnership, company or corporation that installs telephonic, computerized, or electronic message equipment shall be required to monitor the use of such equipment for possible violations of this section, nor shall such person, partnership, company or corporation be held criminally or civilly liable for the use by another person of the equipment in violation of this section, unless the person, partnership, company or corporation that installed the equipment had prior actual knowledge that the equipment was to be used in violation of this section.

SECTION 8. AMENDATORY 21 O.S. 1991, Section 1533, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 405, O.S.L. 1997 (21 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 1533), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1533. A. Except as provided in subsection B of this section, every person who falsely personates any public officer, civil or military, any fireman, any law enforcement officer, any emergency medical technician or other emergency medical care provider, or any private individual having special authority by law to perform any act affecting the rights or interests of another, or who assumes, without authority, any uniform or badge by which such officers or persons are usually distinguished, and in such assumed character does any act whereby another person is injured, defrauded, harassed, vexed or annoyed, upon conviction, is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding six (6) months, or by a fine not exceeding Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000.00), or by both such fine and imprisonment.

B. Every person who falsely personates any public officer or any law enforcement officer in connection with or relating to any sham legal process shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a felony. Beginning July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, a violation of this subsection shall be a schedule F felony. The fine for a violation of this subsection shall not exceed Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

C. Every person who falsely asserts authority of law not provided for by federal or state law in connection with any sham legal process shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a felony. Beginning July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, a violation of this subsection shall be a schedule F felony. The fine for a violation of this subsection shall not exceed Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

D. Every person who, while acting falsely in asserting authority of law, attempts to intimidate or hinder a public official or law enforcement officer in the discharge of official duties by means of threats, harassment, physical abuse, or use of sham legal process, shall be guilty of a felony. Beginning July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, a violation of this subsection shall be a schedule F felony. The fine for a violation of this subsection shall not exceed Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

E. Any person who, without authority under federal or state law, acts as a supreme court justice, a district court judge, an associate district judge, a special judge, a magistrate, a clerk of the court or deputy, a notary public, a juror or other official holding authority to determine a controversy or adjudicate the rights or interests of others, or signs a document in such capacity, shall be guilty of a felony. Beginning July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, a violation of this subsection shall be a schedule F felony. The fine for a violation of this subsection shall not exceed Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

F. Every person who uses any motor vehicle or motor-driven cycle usually distinguished as a law enforcement vehicle or equips any motor vehicle or motor-driven cycle with any spot lamps, audible sirens, or flashing lights, in violation of Sections 12-217, 12-218 or 12-227 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes for the purpose of

falsely personating a law enforcement officer and who in such assumed character commits any act whereby another person is injured, defrauded, harassed, vexed or annoyed shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding one (1) year, or by a fine not exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00), or by both such fine and imprisonment.

G. As used in this section:

1. "Sham legal process" means the issuance, display, delivery, distribution, reliance on as lawful authority, or other use of an instrument that is not lawfully issued, whether or not the instrument is produced for inspection or actually exists, and purports to do any of the following:

- a. to be a summons, subpoena, judgment, arrest warrant, search warrant, or other order of a court recognized by the laws of this state, a law enforcement officer commissioned pursuant to state or federal law or the law of a federally recognized Indian tribe, or a legislative, executive, or administrative agency established by state or federal law or the law of a federally recognized Indian tribe,
- b. to assert jurisdiction or authority over or determine or adjudicate the legal or equitable status, rights, duties, powers, or privileges of any person or property, or
- c. to require or authorize the search, seizure, indictment, arrest, trial, or sentencing of any person or property; and

2. "Lawfully issued" means adopted, issued, or rendered in accordance with the applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and ordinances of the United States, a state, or a political subdivision of a state.

H. It shall not be a defense to a prosecution under subsection B, C, D or E of this section that:

1. The recipient of the sham legal process did not accept or believe in the authority falsely asserted in the sham legal process;
2. The person violating subsection B, C, D or E of this section does not believe in the jurisdiction or authority of this state or of the United States government; or
3. The office the person violating subsection B, C, D or E of this section purports to hold does not exist or is not an official office recognized by state or federal law.

SECTION 9. AMENDATORY Section 2 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1215 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 2. A. Any person who uses a telecommunication device with the intent to avoid the payment of any lawful charge for telecommunication service or with the knowledge that it was to avoid the payment of any lawful charge for telecommunication service and the value of the telecommunication service is not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) or such value cannot be ascertained shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor.

B. Any person who uses a telecommunication device with the intent to avoid the payment of any lawful charge for telecommunication service or with the knowledge that it was to avoid the payment of any lawful charge for telecommunication service and the value of the telecommunication service exceeds One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Schedule G felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the

effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

C. If the cloned cellular telephone used in violation of this section was used to facilitate the commission of a felony the person, upon conviction, shall be guilty of a Schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

D. Any person who has been convicted previously of an offense under this section shall be guilty of a Schedule E felony upon a second and any subsequent conviction, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed five (5) years.

SECTION 10. AMENDATORY Section 3 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1215 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 3. A. Any person who knowingly possesses an unlawful telecommunication device shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor.

B. Any person who knowingly possesses five or more unlawful telecommunication devices at the same time shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

C. Any person who:

1. Knowingly possesses an instrument capable of intercepting electronic serial number and mobile identification number combinations under circumstances evidencing an intent to clone; or

2. Knowingly possesses cloning paraphernalia under circumstances evidencing an intent to clone, shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

SECTION 11. AMENDATORY Section 4 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1215 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 4. A. Any person who intentionally sells an unlawful telecommunication device or material, including hardware, data, computer software, or other information or equipment, knowing that the purchaser or a third person intends to use such material in the manufacture of an unlawful telecommunication device shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

B. If the offense under this section involves the intentional sale of five or more unlawful telecommunication devices within a

six-month period, the person committing the offense, upon conviction, shall be guilty of a Schedule E felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed five (5) years.

SECTION 12. AMENDATORY Section 5 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1215 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 5. A. Any person who intentionally manufacturers an unlawful telecommunication device shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed two (2) years.

B. If the offense under this section involves the intentional manufacture of five or more unlawful telecommunication devices within a six-month period, the person committing the offense shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a Schedule E felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of this title, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed five (5) years.

SECTION 13. AMENDATORY 22 O.S. 1991, Section 857, as amended by Section 17, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 857), is amended to read as follows:

Section 857. After hearing the charge, the jury may either decide in court, or may retire for deliberation. The jury shall determine whether the defendant is guilty or not guilty, but shall not determine the sentence for persons convicted of crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, unless the trial is for the offense of first degree murder. If they do not agree without retiring, one or more officers must be sworn to keep them together in some private and convenient place, and not to permit any person to speak to or communicate with them, nor do so themselves, unless it be by order of the court, or to ask them whether they have agreed upon a verdict, and to return them into court when they have so agreed, or when ordered by the court.

SECTION 14. AMENDATORY Section 56, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 987.18), is amended to read as follows:

Section 987.18 A. On and after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, in lieu of a presentence investigation provided in Section 982 of ~~Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title, for each community sentence case the judge shall, prior to making a determination of punishment and imposing any community punishment or service authorized by law, or imposing any other sentence authorized by law which would receive services from the local system, order an assessment and evaluation of the defendant to assist the court in determining the offender's primary treatment need, appropriate community punishment, and potential risk to public safety if the offender is sentenced in the community.

B. The assessment and evaluation shall be utilized by the court prior to determining any punishment for the offense. The purpose of the assessment shall be to identify the extent of the defendant's deficiencies and needs, the potential risk to public safety, and the appropriateness of various community punishments.

C. The defendant shall be required to complete a standardized assessment and evaluation test which shall be scored by an appropriately trained person designated by the court or pursuant to a service agreement with the local community sentencing system. Any defendant lacking sufficient skills to read, comprehend or otherwise complete the assessment and evaluation test shall have appropriate assistance or may have an oral assessment and evaluation based upon the standardized test form.

D. The failure or refusal of the defendant to be assessed and evaluated shall not prohibit the court from sentencing the defendant.

SECTION 15. AMENDATORY Section 8, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 990a-1), is amended to read as follows:

Section 990a-1. A. When sentencing an offender for a crime committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, a court shall utilize the sentencing procedures provided for in this section.

B. When considering any presentence investigation conducted, the court shall consider the findings of any alleged offense enhancers provided for by subsection A of Section ~~7 of the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act~~ 17 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes or any alleged prior record enhancers provided for by subsection B of Section ~~7 of the Oklahoma Truth in Sentencing Act~~ 17 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, if the findings have been established by clear and convincing evidence.

C. The court shall determine the sentence based on the utilization of the following procedures on the applicable sentencing matrix:

1. First, the court shall determine the schedule of the current offense of conviction on the applicable matrix;

2. Second, the court shall determine the midpoint within the range for the first level of the schedule. The court shall use the midpoint value plus or minus an amount not to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the midpoint value to determine the amount of time to be assessed at level 1;

3. Third, the court shall proceed to the appropriate level of punishment based on the finding of any offense enhancers or prior record enhancers determined by subsection A of this section; and

4. Fourth, the court may deviate from the sentence arrived at pursuant to paragraphs 2 and 3 of this subsection if the sentence pronounced is within the range allowed for the applicable level. The court must articulate a reason for the deviation in the record. A deviation in sentencing shall be subject to appeal by either the state or the defendant, unless the deviation is agreed to by both the defendant and the state.

D. 1. For Field 2, 3 or 4, when the offender is sentenced to community punishment, the sentencing court shall pronounce at the sentencing hearing the terms and conditions of the sentence.

2. For Field 1 or 2, when the offender is sentenced to a term of imprisonment within the Department of Corrections, the sentencing court shall pronounce at the sentencing hearing the terms and conditions of the sentence.

E. The court in determining the appropriate terms and conditions of a sentence shall consider those terms and conditions authorized in subsection B of Section ~~11 of this act~~ 987.8 of this title and punishments authorized for a community sentence. The terms and conditions of a deferred sentence, suspended sentence, split sentence, or postimprisonment supervision shall be provided for in the Uniform Judgment and Sentence form or shall comply with Section 991b of ~~Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title.

F. Prior to entering the sentence, the court shall consider, but shall not be required to state for the record, the following factors:

1. The prior criminal record of the offender with more weight given to convictions for crimes of violence, crimes against persons, and to those of the same nature as the current offense;
2. Whether the victim in the present case was physically harmed;
3. The restitution for bodily injury or property damage to the victim in the present case;
4. The culpability of the offender as indicated by factors such as the role of the offender in the offense, motive, and profit received;
5. Whether a suspended or deferred sentence will provide appropriate punishment of the offense;
6. The educational background and literacy, or any condition of chemical dependency, of the person being sentenced, together with sentencing options which would correct any deficiencies;
7. The demeanor of the offender; and
8. Any other evidence relevant to sentencing the offender.

G. The court shall impose the sentence. When a court enters a sentence in any criminal case in this state, the sentence shall be imposed pursuant to the Uniform Judgment and Sentence form, as promulgated by the Oklahoma Court of Criminal Appeals pursuant to its rulemaking authority, which shall include the findings of the sentencing court at the time of sentencing. An offender profile and offense profile form shall be developed by the Oklahoma Sentencing Commission to ensure uniform data collection of offenders and offenses throughout the State of Oklahoma. District attorneys shall be required to submit additional profile data about the offender on a form promulgated by the Oklahoma Sentencing Commission to the Oklahoma Sentencing Commission and the Department of Corrections within twenty (20) days of judgment and sentence.

SECTION 16. AMENDATORY 22 O.S. 1991, Section 991a-4, as last amended by Section 20, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997 (22 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 991a-4), is amended to read as follows:

Section 991a-4. A. There is hereby created the "Community Service Sentencing Program". The purpose of the program shall be to provide an alternative to incarceration for nonviolent felony offenders who would normally be sentenced to incarceration in a state institution.

B. Any eligible offender may be sentenced, at the discretion of the judge, to a Community Service Sentencing Program pursuant to the provisions of this section. For purposes of this section, "eligible offender" shall mean any person who:

1. Is not participating in the Delayed Sentencing Program for Young Adults pursuant to the provisions of Section 996 through 996.3 of this title;
2. Has not previously been convicted of two or more felonies;
3. Has been convicted of a nonviolent felony offense which shall be defined as any felony offense except assault and battery with a dangerous weapon, aggravated assault and battery on a law officer, poisoning with intent to kill, shooting with intent to kill, assault with intent to kill, assault with intent to commit a felony, murder in the first degree, murder in the second degree, manslaughter in the first degree, manslaughter in the second degree, kidnapping, burglary in the first degree, kidnapping for extortion, maiming, robbery, child beating, wiring any equipment, vehicle, or structure with explosives, forcible sodomy, rape in the first degree or rape by instrumentation, lewd or indecent proposition or lewd or

indecent act with a child under sixteen (16) years of age, use of a firearm or offensive weapon to commit or attempt to commit a felony, pointing firearms, rioting or arson in the first degree;

4. Has properly completed and executed all necessary documents; and

5. Is not otherwise ineligible by law or court rule.

C. The Department of Corrections is authorized, subject to funds available through appropriation by the Legislature, to contract with counties for administration of county Community Service Sentencing Programs. County-funded programs shall not be limited to offenders who would otherwise be sentenced to confinement with the Department. The Department shall establish criteria and specifications for contracts with counties for such program. A county may apply to the Department for a contract for a county-funded program for a specified period of time. The Department shall be responsible for ensuring that any contracting county complies in full with the specifications and requirements of the contract. The contract shall set appropriate compensation to the county for services to the Department. The Department is authorized to provide technical assistance to any county in establishing a program, regardless of whether the county enters into a contract pursuant to this section. Technical assistance shall include appropriate staffing, development of community resources, sponsorship, supervision and any other requirement set forth in this section. The Department shall annually make a report to the Governor, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives on the number of such programs, the number of participating offenders, the success rates of each program according to criteria established by the Department and the cost of each program.

D. The Department of Corrections shall administer the Program, except in counties with a population of five hundred fifty thousand (550,000) or more persons that operate an existing program. The Department shall conduct a presentence investigation pursuant to the provisions of Section 982 of this title if the court determines the offender is to be assigned to the Program. As part of such presentence investigation, the Department shall interview the offender and advise him of the requirements and conditions of the Program. The Department shall recommend an assignment of the offender to any one or combination of the following areas:

1. Community service, with or without compensation;

2. Education, vocational-technical education or literacy programs;

3. Substance abuse treatment programs;

4. Periodic testing for the presence of controlled substances;

5. Psychological counseling or psychiatric treatment;

6. Medical treatment;

7. Restitution, to be paid either to the victim of the offense or to the Crime Victims Compensation Revolving Fund created pursuant to the provisions of Section 142.17 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

8. Confinement in a county jail for a period not to exceed one (1) year, night or weekend incarceration pursuant to the provisions of Section 991a-2 of this title or incarceration by the Department of Corrections; provided, the Department of Corrections shall reimburse a county which does not receive payments from any other source for the cost of the necessary expenses of such persons during periods of such incarceration in an amount not to exceed Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) per day and any county receiving such payments in an amount not to exceed Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per day. The

Department shall reimburse the county for the actual cost paid for any emergency medical care for physical injury or illness of such persons if the county is required by law to provide such care for inmates in the jail. The reimbursements provided by this section shall not exceed the cost that would have accrued to the state for the feeding, care or medical care of the persons had they been incarcerated with the Department. Except as otherwise provided by law, all provisions of the Oklahoma Corrections Act of 1967, Section 501 et seq. of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes, shall apply to such persons, including but not limited to any provisions requiring payment by such persons of the costs of incarceration; or

9. Probation or conditional probation.

E. In counties with a population of five hundred fifty thousand (550,000) or more persons that operate an existing program, the Department of Corrections is hereby authorized to reimburse the county sheriff, pursuant to paragraph 8 of subsection D of this section, the cost of necessary expenses for confinement in the county jail for any eligible offender as defined in subsection B of this section and may reimburse the county for the cost of expenses for any of the items listed in paragraphs 1 through 7 and 9 of subsection D of this section; provided, however, a decision by the Department of Corrections not to reimburse any of these items shall not be grounds for termination of the existing program. Such reimbursement shall be subject to appropriation by the Legislature. The Department may promulgate rules and procedures for submitting claims for reimbursements pursuant to this subsection.

F. The judge shall consider the criminal history of the offender, the nature of the offender's criminal conduct, the employment and family history of the offender and any other factors he deems relevant when sentencing persons to the Program. Following the presentence investigations and recommendation, the judge shall impose sentence. The judge may accept the recommendation, with or without modifications thereto, or may reject the recommendation and impose any sentence allowed by law.

G. The provisions of Sections 20, 58.3, 138, 138.1 and 224 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes and Section 615 of Title 69 of the Oklahoma Statutes and any other provisions of law relating to earned credits for certain acts or service shall not apply to persons participating in the Program. The judge may establish a schedule of earned credits as part of the sentence.

H. The Department shall establish a list of federal, state and local government agencies, community service agencies, nonprofit organizations, educational programs and other treatment programs willing to participate in the program to which offenders may be referred. The Department shall periodically contact agencies, organizations and programs to which offenders are assigned to determine if offenders have reported and performed satisfactorily. Any such agency or program shall immediately notify the Department if an offender fails to fulfill any requirement of the Program. The Department or the sentencing judge may require additional documentation of the offender's work performance.

I. The Department shall ensure that the sentencing judge and prosecuting attorney are notified in writing when an offender has successfully completed the assigned community service hours or other requirements of the Program or has failed to complete the requirements and provide any other relevant information required by the sentencing judge or prosecuting attorney.

J. All state and local government agencies, community service agencies, nonprofit organizations, educational programs and other treatment programs participating in the Program are hereby immune

from liability for any offender participating in the Program under the Workers' Compensation Act, Section 1 et seq. of Title 85 of the Oklahoma Statutes, and for torts committed by or against any offender participating in the Program to the extent specified in Sections 227 and 228 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

K. Any offender participating in the Program shall be advised of the provisions of this section and shall, in writing, acknowledge that he has been advised of and understands the provisions of the Program.

L. The court shall not be authorized to sentence any offender to this program for any offense committed on or after June 30, 1998 1999.

SECTION 17. AMENDATORY 57 O.S. 1991, Section 138, as last amended by Section 5 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 138. A. All persons convicted of crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, whether their sentences are for incarceration, in whole or in part, or are for a suspended sentence which is subsequently revoked, shall receive only those earned credits pursuant to and limited by subparagraph b of paragraph 2 of subsection E of this section and paragraph 2 of subsection H of this section.

B. Except as otherwise provided by law, every inmate of a state correctional institution shall have their term of imprisonment reduced monthly, based upon the class level to which they are assigned. Earned credits may be subtracted from the total credits accumulated by an inmate, upon recommendation of the institution's disciplinary committee, following due process, and upon approval of the warden or superintendent. Each earned credit is equivalent to one (1) day of incarceration. Lost credits may be restored by the warden or superintendent upon approval of the classification committee. If a maximum and minimum term of imprisonment is imposed, the provisions of this subsection shall apply only to the maximum term. No deductions shall be credited to any inmate serving a sentence of life imprisonment; however, a complete record of the inmate's participation in work, school, vocational training, or other approved program shall be maintained by the Department for consideration by the paroling authority.

C. The Department of Corrections is directed to develop a written policy and procedure whereby inmates shall be assigned to one (1) of four (4) class levels determined by an adjustment review committee of the facility to which the inmate is assigned. The policies and procedures developed by the Department shall include, but not be limited to, written guidelines pertaining to awarding credits for rehabilitation, obtaining job skills and educational enhancement, participation in and completion of alcohol/chemical abuse programs, incentives for inmates to accept work assignments and jobs, work attendance and productivity, conduct record, participation in programs, cooperative general behavior, and appearance. When assigning inmates to a class level the adjustment review committee shall consider all aspects of the policy and procedure developed by the Department, including but not limited to, the criteria for awarding credits required by this subsection.

D. If an inmate who has been assessed to be capable of benefiting from education programs refuses assignment to an education program, the inmate shall remain in class level 1 until such time as the inmate accepts an educational assignment.

E. 1. Class levels shall be as follows:

- a. Class level 1 shall include inmates not eligible to participate in class levels 2 through 4, and shall include, but not be limited to, inmates on escape status, inmates refusing job, education, or program assignments, inmates removed from job, education, or program assignments due to misconduct or nonperformance, or inmates subject to disciplinary action.
 - b. Class level 2 shall include an inmate who has been given a work, education, or program assignment, has received a good evaluation for participation in the work, education, or program assignment, and has received a good evaluation for personal hygiene and maintenance of living area.
 - c. Class level 3 shall include an inmate who has been incarcerated at least four (4) months, has received an excellent work, education, or program evaluation, and has received an excellent evaluation for personal hygiene and maintenance of living area.
 - d. Class level 4 shall include an inmate who has been incarcerated at least ten (10) months, has received an outstanding work, education, or program evaluation, and has received an outstanding evaluation for personal hygiene and maintenance of living area.
2. a. Class level corresponding credits for inmates who were sentenced for crimes committed prior to July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, are as follows:
- Class 1 - 0 Credits per month;
 - Class 2 - 22 Credits per month;
 - Class 3 - 33 Credits per month;
 - Class 4 - 44 Credits per month; and
- b. Class level corresponding credits for inmates who are sentenced for crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, are as follows:
- Class 1 - 0 Credits per month;
 - Class 2 - 3 Credits per month;
 - Class 3 - 5 Credits per month;
 - Class 4 - 10 Credits per month.

Provided, however, for inmates who are sentenced for crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, the combined credits for all purposes cannot exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the sentence.

Each inmate shall receive the above specified monthly credits for the class to which he is assigned.

3. In addition to the criteria established for each class in paragraph 1 of this subsection, the following requirements shall apply to each of levels 2 through 4:

- a. satisfactory participation in the work, education, or program assignment at the standard required for the particular class level;
- b. maintenance of a clean and orderly living area and personal hygiene at the standard required for the particular class level;
- c. cooperative behavior toward facility staff and other inmates;
- d. satisfactory participation in the requirements of the previous class level.

4. The evaluation scale for assessing performance shall be as follows:

- a. Outstanding - For inmates who display consistently exceptional initiative, motivation, and work habits.

- b. Excellent - For inmates who display above-average work habits with only minor errors and rarely perform below expectations.
- c. Good - For inmates who perform in a satisfactory manner and complete tasks as required, doing what is expected, with only occasional performance above or below expectations.
- d. Fair - For inmates who may perform satisfactorily for some periods of time, but whose performance is marked by obviously deficient and weak areas and could be improved.
- e. Poor - For inmates whose performance is unsatisfactory and falls below expected and acceptable standards.

F. The policy and procedure developed by the Department of Corrections shall include provisions for adjustment review committees of not less than three (3) members for each such committee. Each committee shall consist of a classification team supervisor who shall act as chairman, the case manager for the inmate being reviewed or classified, a correctional officer or inmate counselor, and not more than two other members, if deemed necessary, determined pursuant to policy and procedure to be appropriate for the specific adjustment review committee or committees to which they are assigned. At least once every four (4) months the adjustment review committee for each inmate shall evaluate the class level status and performance of the inmate and determine whether or not the class level for the inmate should be changed.

Any inmate who feels aggrieved by a decision made by an adjustment review committee may utilize normal grievance procedures in effect with the Department of Corrections and in effect at the facility in which the inmate is incarcerated.

G. Inmates granted medical leaves for treatment that cannot be furnished at the penal institution where incarcerated shall be allowed the time spent on medical leave as time served. Any inmate classified by the Department of Corrections as being physically or mentally disabled for work or placed into administrative segregation for nondisciplinary reasons by the institution's administration may be placed in Class 2. The length of any jail term served by an inmate before being transported to a state correctional institution pursuant to a judgment and sentence of incarceration shall be deducted from his term of imprisonment at the state correctional institution. Inmates sentenced to the Department of Corrections and detained in a county jail as a result of the Department's reception scheduling procedure shall be awarded earned credits as provided for in subparagraph b of paragraph 1 of subsection E of this section, beginning on the date of the judgment and sentence, unless the inmate is convicted of a misdemeanor or felony committed in the jail while the inmate is awaiting transport to the Lexington Assessment and Reception Center or other assessment and reception location determined by the Director of the Department of Corrections.

H. 1. For inmates who were sentenced for crimes committed prior to July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, additional achievement earned credits for successful completion of departmentally approved programs or for attaining goals or standards set by the Department shall be awarded as follows:

- High School Diploma or Equivalent General Education Diploma 90 credits;
- Certification of Completion of Vocational Training 80 credits;

Successful completion of Alcohol/Chemical Abuse Treatment Program of not less than four (4) months continuous participation 70 credits;

Successful completion of other Educational Accomplishments or other programs not specified in this subsection 10 - 30 credits;

2. For inmates who are sentenced for crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, additional achievement earned credits for successful completion of departmentally approved programs or for attaining goals or standards set by the Department shall be awarded as follows:

High School Diploma or Equivalent General Education Diploma ... 45 credits;

Certification of Completion of Vocational Training ... 40 credits;

Successful completion of Alcohol/Chemical Abuse Treatment Program of not less than four (4) months continuous participation 35 credits;

Successful completion of other Educational Accomplishments or other programs not specified in this subsection 5 - 15 credits;

Achievement earned credits are subject to loss and restoration in the same manner as earned credits. No inmate shall receive more than ninety (90) achievement credits per calendar year. The combined awarded credits for both earned credits and achievement credits for all purposes for inmates sentenced for crimes committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, shall not reduce a sentence more than fifteen percent (15%).

I. The accumulated time of every inmate shall be tallied monthly and maintained by the institution where the term of imprisonment is being served. A record of said accumulated time shall be:

1. Sent to the administrative office of the Department of Corrections on a quarterly basis; and

2. Provided to the inmate.

J. As of November 1, 1988, all inmates currently under the custody of the Department of Corrections shall receive their assignments and all credits from that date forward shall be calculated as provided in this section.

SECTION 18. AMENDATORY 57 O.S. 1991, Section 332.7, as last amended by Section 6 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 332.7 A. For a crime committed prior to July 1, 1998, any person in the custody of the Department of Corrections shall be eligible for consideration for parole ~~who has~~ at the earliest of the following dates:

1. ~~Completed~~ Has completed serving one-third (1/3) of the sentence;

2. ~~Reached~~ Has reached at least sixty (60) years of age and also has served at least fifty percent (50%) of the time of imprisonment that would have been imposed for that offense pursuant to the applicable Truth in Sentencing matrix; provided, however, no inmate serving a sentence for crimes listed in Schedules A, S-1, S-2 or S-3 or serving a sentence of life imprisonment without parole shall be eligible to be considered for parole pursuant to this paragraph;

3. ~~Been sentenced for an offense that is listed in Schedule A, B, C, D, D-1, S-1, S-2 or S-3 and has served~~ Has reached eighty-five percent (85%) of the midpoint of the time of imprisonment that would

have been imposed for ~~that~~ an offense that is listed in Schedule A, B, C, D, D-1, S-1, S-2 or S-3, pursuant to the applicable matrix; provided, however, no inmate serving a sentence of life imprisonment without parole shall be eligible to be considered for parole pursuant to this paragraph; or

~~4. Been sentenced for an offense that is listed in any other schedule, served~~ Has reached seventy-five percent (75%) of the midpoint of the time of imprisonment that would have been imposed for ~~that~~ an offense that is listed in any other schedule, pursuant to the applicable matrix; provided, however, no inmate serving a sentence of life imprisonment without parole shall be eligible to be considered for parole pursuant to this paragraph.

B. For a crime committed on or after July 1, 1998, but prior to July 1, 1999, any person in the custody of the Department of Corrections shall be eligible for consideration for parole who has completed serving one-third (1/3) of the sentence; provided, however, no inmate serving a sentence of life imprisonment without parole shall be eligible to be considered for parole pursuant to this subsection.

C. The parole hearings conducted for persons pursuant to paragraph 3 of subsection A of this section or for any person who was convicted of a violent crime as set forth in Section 571 of this title and who is eligible for parole consideration pursuant to either paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section or subsection B of this section shall be conducted in two stages, as follows:

1. At the initial hearing, the Pardon and Parole Board shall review the completed report submitted by the staff of the Board and shall conduct a vote regarding whether, based upon that report, the Board decides to consider the person for parole at a subsequent meeting of the Board; and

2. At the subsequent meeting, the Board shall hear from any victim or victim's representative that wants to contest the granting of parole to that person and shall conduct a vote regarding whether parole should be recommended for that person.

D. Any inmate who has parole consideration dates calculated pursuant to subsection A, B or C of this section shall be considered at the earliest such date. ~~Any inmate~~ Except as otherwise directed by the Pardon and Parole Board, any person who has been considered for parole and was denied parole or who has waived consideration shall not be reconsidered for parole:

1. Within three (3) years, if the person was convicted of a violent crime, as set forth in Section 571 of this title, and was eligible for consideration pursuant to paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section or subsection B of this section, unless the person is within one (1) year, ~~except by the direction of the Pardon and Parole Board of discharge;~~

2. Until the person has served at least one-third (1/3) of the sentence imposed, if the person was eligible for consideration pursuant to paragraph 3 of subsection A of this section. Thereafter the person shall not be considered more frequently than once every three (3) years, unless the person is within one (1) year of discharge;

3. Within one (1) year, if the person was convicted of a nonviolent crime and was eligible for consideration pursuant to paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section or subsection B of this section; and

4. Within one (1) year, if the person was eligible for consideration pursuant to paragraph 2 or 4 of subsection A of this section.

E. Any person in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a crime committed prior to July 1, 1998, who has been considered for parole on a docket created for a type of parole consideration that has been abolished by the Legislature shall not be considered for parole except in accordance with this section.

~~2.~~ F. The Department of Corrections and the Pardon and Parole Board shall promulgate rules for the implementation of ~~subsection~~ subsections A, B and C of this section. The rules shall include, but not be limited to, procedures for reconsideration of persons denied parole under this section and procedure for determining what sentence ~~the~~ a person eligible for parole consideration pursuant to subsection A of this section would have received under the applicable matrix.

~~G.~~ G. For persons in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a felony committed prior to July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, the Pardon and Parole Board shall not recommend to the Governor any person who has been convicted of three or more felonies arising out of separate and distinct transactions, with three or more incarcerations for such felonies, unless such person shall have served the lesser of at least one-third (1/3) of the sentence imposed, or ten (10) years; provided that whenever the population of the prison system exceeds ninety-five percent (95%) of the capacity as certified by the State Board of Corrections, the Pardon and Parole Board may, at its discretion, recommend to the Governor for parole any person who is incarcerated for a nonviolent offense not involving injury to a person and who is within six (6) months of his or her statutory parole eligibility date.

~~D.~~ H. For a crime committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999:

1. Any person convicted of a crime in Schedule A, B, C, D, D-1, S-1, S-2 or S-3 shall be eligible for parole consideration after serving eighty-five percent (85%) of the sentence of imprisonment imposed unless the sentence has been discharged by accumulated credits pursuant to Section 138 of this title;

2. Any person convicted of a crime in any other schedule shall be eligible for parole consideration after serving seventy-five percent (75%) of the sentence of imprisonment imposed subject to the accumulation of credits pursuant to Section 138 of this title; or

3. A person who is sixty (60) years of age or older, who has not been sentenced to life without parole or death and who has not been convicted of a crime listed in Schedule A, S-1, S-2 or S-3, shall be eligible for parole consideration after the person has served at least fifty percent (50%) of any imposed sentence of incarceration.

The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to any person sentenced to life imprisonment without parole.

~~E.~~ I. It shall be the duty of the Pardon and Parole Board to cause an examination to be made at the penal institution where the person is assigned, and to make inquiry into the conduct and the record of the said person during his custody in the Department of Corrections, which shall be considered as a basis for consideration of said person for recommendation to the Governor for parole. However, the Pardon and Parole Board shall not be required to consider for parole any person who has completed the time period provided for in this subsection if the person has participated in a riot or in the taking of hostages, or has been placed on escape status, while in the custody of the Department of Corrections. The Pardon and Parole Board shall adopt policies and procedures governing parole consideration for such persons.

~~F.~~ J. Any person in the custody of the Department of Corrections who is convicted of an offense not designated as a

violent offense by Section 571 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes and who is not a citizen of the United States and is or becomes subject of a final order of deportation issued by the United States Department of Justice shall be considered for parole to the custody of the United States Immigration and Naturalization Service for continuation of deportation proceedings at any time subsequent to reception and processing through the Department of Corrections.

~~G.~~ K. Upon application of any person convicted and sentenced by a court of this state and relinquished to the custody of another state or federal authorities pursuant to Section 61.2 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the Pardon and Parole Board may determine a parole consideration date consistent with the provisions of this section and criteria established by the Pardon and Parole Board.

~~H.~~ L. No person who is appearing out of the normal processing procedure shall be eligible for consideration for parole without the concurrence of at least three (3) members of the Pardon and Parole Board.

~~I.~~ M. Any person convicted of a crime committed on or after July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999, who was sentenced to postimprisonment supervision and who is granted parole while incarcerated, shall be placed under parole supervision before beginning postimprisonment supervision.

~~J.~~ N. If a person is sentenced to consecutive sentences pursuant to the Oklahoma Community ~~Corrections~~ Sentencing Act of county jail incarceration that requires the person to be incarcerated more than eighteen (18) months, the person shall be eligible for parole consideration after serving at least eighteen (18) months of the confinement. The local administrator for community punishment shall notify the Pardon and Parole Board of any persons who qualify for parole pursuant to this subsection.

SECTION 19. AMENDATORY 57 O.S. 1991, Section 570, as amended by Section 32, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997 (57 O.S. Supp. 1997, Section 570), is amended to read as follows:

Section 570. Sections 570 through 576 of this title shall be known and may be cited as the "Oklahoma Prison Overcrowding Emergency Powers Act". The provisions of the Oklahoma Prison Overcrowding Emergency Powers Act shall apply only to persons sentenced for crimes committed before July 1, ~~1998~~ 1999.

SECTION 20. AMENDATORY 66 O.S. 1991, Section 304, as last amended by Section 2 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 260 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 304. A. The Department of Transportation is hereby authorized and empowered:

1. To acquire, construct, reconstruct, repair, replace, operate and maintain railroad rights-of-way and trackage projects at such locations and on such routes as it shall determine to be feasible and economically sound;

2. To enter into agreements with the owners of operating railroads for the acquisition and/or use of railroad rights-of-way and trackage on such terms, conditions, rates or rentals as the Department may consider to be in the best interests of the state;

3. To enter directly into agreements with owners of operating railroads or persons intending to operate as common carriers by rail to sell, lease, or sell by lease-purchase agreement any state-owned railroad property on such terms, conditions or amounts as the Department may consider to be in the best interests of the state and to promote the purposes of the Railroad Revitalization Act;

4. To acquire and hold real or personal property in the exercise of its powers for the performance of its duties as

authorized by this act. Surplus property may be disposed of by the Department;

5. To acquire in the name of the Department, by purchase or otherwise on such terms and conditions and in such manner as it may deem proper, or by exercise of the right of condemnation, such public or private lands and personalty, including public parks, playgrounds, or reservations, or parts thereof or rights therein, rights-of-way, trackage, property, rights, easements, and interests, as it may deem necessary for carrying out the provisions of the Railroad Revitalization Act;

6. To make and enter into all contracts and agreements necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and the execution of its powers under the Railroad Revitalization Act, and to employ rail planning and management consultants, consulting engineers, attorneys, accountants, construction and financial consultants, superintendents, managers, and such other employees and agents as may be necessary in its judgment, and to fix their compensation; provided, that all such expenses shall be payable solely from funds made available under and pursuant to the provisions of the Railroad Revitalization Act or from revenues; provided, further, no attorney employed by the Department, nor any member of any law firm of which the member may be connected, shall ever be paid any fee or compensation for any special or extraordinary services;

7. To receive, accept and expend funds from the state, any federal agency, or from private sources, for rail planning and for administration of railroad assistance projects, and for or in aid of the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, replacement, repair, maintenance and operation of railroad rights-of-way and trackage and for rail service continuation payments to railroad companies for operating losses sustained by reasons of continuing service on a line which may otherwise be abandoned or which may experience a reduced level of service not in the public interest, where such continuation of service is carried out under a written agreement with the Department establishing the terms and conditions for such payments, and to receive and accept funds, aid or contributions from any source of either money, property, labor or other things of value, to be held, used and applied only for the purposes for which such funds, aid or contributions may be made;

8. To adopt such rules and to do any and all things necessary to comply with rules, regulations or requirements of the United States Department of Transportation, any successor thereof, the Interstate Commerce Commission or any federal agency administering any law enacted by the Congress of the United States or having funds available for the purpose of the Department that are not inconsistent with or contrary to the prohibitions and restrictions of Oklahoma law or public interest;

9. To expend, not to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the funds available in the Railroad Maintenance Revolving Fund during any one (1) year, at locations approved by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission, such Oklahoma Railroad Maintenance Revolving Fund monies as may be budgeted by the Department of Transportation for the purposes of installing signal lights, gate arms, or other active warning devices where any public road, street, or highway crosses a railroad right-of-way; provided, however, nothing in this act shall negate, change, or otherwise modify any existing statutory or common law duty of a railroad company;

10. To expend income and funds from the Oklahoma Railroad Maintenance Revolving Fund in the exercise of any or all of the foregoing powers;

11. To do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the powers expressly granted in this act.

B. It shall be unlawful for any member, officer or employee of the Department to transact with the Department, either directly or indirectly, any business for profit of such member, officer or employee; and any person, firm or corporation knowingly participating therein shall be equally liable for violation of this provision.

The term "business for profit" shall include, but not be limited to, the acceptance or payment of any fee, commission, gift, or consideration to such member, officer or employee.

Violation of this provision shall constitute a Schedule F felony, upon conviction, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed five (5) years. The fine for a violation of this provision shall be not less than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) and not more than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

C. All meetings of the Department shall be open public meetings, and all records shall be public records, except when considering personnel.

SECTION 21. AMENDATORY 69 O.S. 1991, Section 1705, as last amended by Section 3 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2731 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1705. The Authority is hereby authorized and empowered:

(a) To adopt bylaws for the regulation of its affairs and conduct of its business.

(b) To adopt an official seal and alter the same at pleasure.

(c) To maintain an office at such place or places within the state as it may designate.

(d) To sue and be sued in contract, reverse condemnation, equity, mandamus and similar actions in its own name, plead and be impleaded; provided, that any and all actions at law or in equity against the Authority shall be brought in the county in which the principal office of the Authority shall be located, or in the county of the residence of the plaintiff, or the county where the cause of action arose. All privileges granted to the Authority and duties enjoined upon the Authority by the provisions of Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title may be enforced in a court of competent jurisdiction in an action in mandamus.

(e) To construct, maintain, repair and operate turnpike projects and highways, with their access and connecting roads, at such locations and on such routes as it shall determine to be feasible and economically sound; provided, that until specifically authorized by the Legislature, the Authority shall be authorized to construct and operate toll turnpikes only at the following locations:

(1) The Turner Turnpike between Oklahoma City and Tulsa.

(2) The Southwestern (H.E. Bailey) Turnpike between Oklahoma City and Wichita Falls, Texas.

(3) The Northeastern (Will Rogers) Turnpike between Tulsa and Joplin, Missouri.

(4) The Eastern (Indian Nation) Turnpike between Tulsa and Paris, Texas, including all or any part thereof between McAlester and the Red River south of Hugo.

(5) The Cimarron Turnpike between Tulsa and Interstate Highway 35 north of Perry, including a connection to Stillwater.

(6) The Muskogee Turnpike between Broken Arrow and Interstate Highway 40 west of Webbers Falls.

(7) All or any part of an extension of the Muskogee Turnpike, beginning at a point on Interstate Highway 40 near the present south terminus of the Muskogee Turnpike, and extending in a southeasterly direction on an alignment near Stigler, Poteau and Heavener to the vicinity of the Arkansas State Line to furnish access to Hot Springs, Texarkana, Shreveport and New Orleans.

(8) A tollgate on the Turner Turnpike in the vicinity of Luther, Oklahoma, and in the vicinity of the intersection of State Highway 33 and Turner Turnpike in Creek County, Oklahoma, or in the vicinity of the intersection of State Highway 33 and Turner Turnpike or U.S. Highway 66 in Creek County, Oklahoma, from any monies available to the Turnpike Authority.

(9) Add on the Will Rogers Turnpike a northbound automatic tollgate onto State Highway 28 and a southbound on-ramp from State Highway 28.

(10) A turnpike or any part or parts thereof beginning in the vicinity of Duncan extending east to the vicinity of the City of Davis, and extending in a northeasterly direction, by way of the vicinity of the City of Ada, to a connection in the vicinity of Henryetta or in the vicinity of the intersection of State Highway 48 and Interstate 40; and a turnpike or any part or parts thereof from the vicinity of Snyder extending north to the vicinity of Woodward.

(11) A turnpike or any part or parts thereof beginning at a point in the vicinity of Ponca City, or at a point on the Kansas-Oklahoma state boundary line east of the Arkansas River and west of the point where Oklahoma State Highway No. 18 intersects said state boundary line, and extending in a southeasterly direction to a connection with the Tulsa Urban Expressway System in the general area of the Port of Catoosa.

(12) All or any part of an Oklahoma City toll expressway system connecting the residential, industrial and State Capitol Complex in the north part of Oklahoma City with the residential, industrial and Will Rogers World Airport Complex in the south and southwest parts of Oklahoma City.

(13) A turnpike (The Industrial Parkway) or any part or parts thereof beginning at a point on the Oklahoma-Kansas state boundary line between the point where U.S. Highway 66 intersects said boundary line and the northeast corner of Oklahoma and ending by means of a connection or connections with Shreveport, Louisiana, and Houston, Texas, in southeastern Oklahoma and at no point to exceed thirty (30) miles west of the Missouri or Arkansas border.

(14) A turnpike or any part or parts thereof beginning in the vicinity of Velma or County Line to a point intersecting with Interstate 35 in the area south of Davis.

(15) A turnpike or any part or parts thereof beginning in the vicinity of Watonga and extending south and/or east to the vicinity of north and/or west Oklahoma City.

(16) A new turnpike or parts thereof from the Kansas State Line south to McAlester, in the vicinity of U.S. Highway 69.

(17) A tollgate on the Will Rogers Turnpike near the intersection of State Highway 137 and the Will Rogers Turnpike, located south of Quapaw.

(18) A tollgate on the Muskogee Turnpike in the vicinity of Porter, Oklahoma, a tollgate on the Will Rogers Turnpike in the vicinity of Adair, Oklahoma, a tollgate on the Turner Turnpike in the vicinity of Luther, Oklahoma, and a tollgate on the H.E. Bailey Turnpike at Elgin, Oklahoma, from any monies available to the Turnpike Authority.

(19) A tollgate on the Turner Turnpike in the vicinity of Wellston, Oklahoma, from any monies available to the Turnpike Authority.

(20) A tollgate on the Muskogee Turnpike in the vicinity of Brushy Mountain, Oklahoma, and in the vicinity of Elm Grove, Oklahoma, from any monies available to the Turnpike Authority.

(21) All or any part of an Oklahoma City Outer Loop expressway system beginning in the vicinity of I-35 and the Turner Turnpike and extending west into Canadian County and then south to I-40; and then south and east to I-35 in the vicinity of Moore and Norman; and then extending east and north to I-40 east of Tinker Field; and then extending north to the Turner Turnpike to complete the Outer Loop.

(22) All or any part of the Tulsa south bypass expressway system beginning in the vicinity of the Turner Turnpike near Sapulpa and extending south and east to U.S. 75 in the vicinity of 96th Street to 121st Street; and then east across the Arkansas River to a connection with the Mingo Valley Expressway; and then south and/or east to a point on the Tulsa-Wagoner County Line near 131st street south in the city of Broken Arrow.

(23) A new turnpike or any part thereof from near the west gate of the Will Rogers Turnpike south to the west end of south Tulsa Turnpike at the Tulsa-Wagoner County Line.

(24) A new turnpike or any parts thereof from the vicinity of the connection between State Highway 33 and U.S. 69 easterly to the Arkansas State Line.

(25) A four-lane extension of the Muskogee Turnpike from Interstate Highway 40 west of Webbers Falls to the Poteau vicinity.

(26) A new turnpike or any part or parts thereof beginning at a point in the vicinity of northwest Tulsa, and extending in a northwesterly direction, by means of a connection or connections with the cities of Pawhuska and Newkirk, to a point intersecting in the vicinity of US Highway No. 77 and the Kansas State Line.

(27) A full access interchange on the Indian Nation Turnpike south of Interstate 40, in the vicinity of Henryetta, Oklahoma, and in the vicinity of the proposed theme park, from any monies available to the Turnpike Authority.

(28) A new turnpike beginning at a point directly west of the Arkansas line and four-laning Highway 70 from that point to the farthest western reach of Highway 70 creating a southern route through Oklahoma.

(29) A new turnpike and bridge or any parts thereof from a point in the vicinity of the city of Mustang southerly across the South Canadian River to the H.E. Bailey Turnpike in the vicinity of the city of Tuttle; and then easterly across the South Canadian River to a point in the vicinity of the city of Norman.

(30) A new turnpike or any parts thereof beginning at a point in the vicinity of the city of Altus and extending in a northwesterly direction to a point in the vicinity of the city of Sayre.

(31) A new turnpike or any parts thereof beginning at a point in the vicinity of the city of Enid and extending in a westerly direction to a point in the vicinity of the city of Woodward.

All access roads, interchanges, or lead roads connecting such turnpikes with existing highways must be built by funds furnished by the Authority.

The minimum and maximum wages for the construction of the roads, highways and projects provided for in Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title shall be in accordance with the schedules of wages used or adopted by the Commission in construction of state highways.

The Authority is hereby authorized to enter into contracts or agreements with agencies and instrumentalities of other states or the national government for construction, maintenance and operation of interstate turnpikes or highways.

The Authority is hereby required to construct and install automatic tollgates on the Will Rogers Turnpike at State Highway No. 28 near Adair.

(f) To issue turnpike revenue bonds of the Authority, payable solely from revenues, including the revenues accruing to the trust fund created by Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title, for the purpose of paying all or any part of the cost of any one or more turnpike projects. Provided that any bonds issued for the construction of the proposed turnpike referred to in subparagraphs (10), (20), (21) and (22) of paragraph (e) of this section shall be issued as one issue for all four of the proposed turnpikes and shall be financed, constructed and operated under one bond indenture.

(g) To fix and revise from time to time tolls for the use of any turnpike projects.

Any common carrier having authority at the time of opening any turnpike project to operate upon a highway approximately paralleling the turnpike project shall be granted without further showing authority to operate over the turnpike project to all municipalities which such carrier is serving at the time the turnpike project is opened to traffic. But nothing herein shall be construed as granting any new operation rights to any common carriers.

(h) To acquire, hold, and dispose of real and personal property in the exercise of its powers and the performance of its duties.

(i) To acquire in the name of the Authority by purchase or otherwise on such terms and conditions and in such manner as it may deem proper, or by exercise of the right of condemnation in manner hereinafter provided, such public or private lands, including public parks, playgrounds, or reservations, or parts thereof or rights therein, rights-of-way, property, rights, easements, and interests, as it may deem necessary for carrying out the provisions of Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title; provided, that all public property damaged in carrying out the powers granted by Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title shall be restored or repaired and placed in its original condition as nearly as practicable.

(j) To designate, except as is provided for herein, the location, and establish, limit and control such points of ingress to and egress from each turnpike project as may be necessary or desirable in the judgment of the Authority to insure the proper operation and maintenance of such project, and to prohibit entrance to such project from any point or points not so designated.

(k) To make and enter into all contracts and agreements necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and the execution of its powers, and to employ consulting engineers, attorneys, accountants, construction and financial experts, superintendents, managers, and such other employees and agents as may be necessary in its judgment, and to fix their compensation; provided, that all such expenses shall be payable solely from the proceeds of turnpike revenue bonds issued under the provisions of Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title or from revenues; provided, further, no attorney employed by the Authority, nor any member of any law firm of which he may be connected, shall ever be paid any fee or compensation for any special or extraordinary services.

(l) To receive and accept from any federal agency grants for or in aid of the construction of any turnpike project, provided, the acceptance of such grants will not reduce the amount of federal aid for the construction, repair, or maintenance of farm-to-market roads

and other highways and bridges in this state; and to receive and accept aid or contributions from any source of either money, property, labor, or other things of value, to be held, used, and applied only for the purposes for which such grants and contributions may be made.

(m) To adopt such rules and regulations, and to do any and all things necessary to comply with rules, regulations, or requirements of the Bureau of Public Roads, Multistate Economic Development Regional Commission, as defined in Sections 1151 through 1153, inclusive, of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Ozarka Region Commission or any other federal agency administering any law enacted by the Congress of the United States to aid or encourage the construction of highways.

(n) To do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the powers expressly granted in Sections 1701 through 1734 of this title. On all turnpike projects alternate bids for paving work shall be taken on asphalt concrete and portland cement concrete and the design standards for such paving shall comply with the design standards of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials as modified by the Oklahoma Department of Transportation. All contracts for construction work on turnpike projects shall be let to the lowest responsible bidder, or bidders, after notice by publication in a newspaper published in the county where the work is to be done in two consecutive weekly issues of the newspaper. In all cases where more than eight (8) miles of construction is let at the same time, such advertisement shall provide for bids on sections of the turnpike not to exceed eight (8) miles. Subject to the following restrictions and limitations, the Authority shall, when contracting for construction work, divide such work into paving projects, bridge projects, including underpasses and overpasses, and earthmoving or miscellaneous projects, according to the type of work to be done. Each project shall be let under a separate contract or contracts and no contract or project shall include more than one of such types of construction work. Each contract for construction work shall contain a provision that ninety percent (90%) of all labor employed on the project shall be residents of Oklahoma. However, contracts for bridges may include earthwork and structures for the approaches thereto.

(o) It shall be unlawful for any member, officer or employee of the Authority to transact with the Authority, either directly or indirectly, any business for profit of such member, officer, or employee; and any person, firm, or corporation knowingly participating therein shall be equally liable for violation of this provision.

The term "business for profit" shall include, but not be limited to, the acceptance or payment of any fee, commission, gift, or consideration to such member, officer, or employee.

Violation of this provision shall constitute a Schedule F felony, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes. If the offense occurs before the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for a term not to exceed five (5) years. The fine for a violation of this provision shall be not less than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) and not more than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

(p) In the event of a national emergency, the Authority, subject to any vested rights or claims, may enter into contracts with the federal government or any authorized agency thereof to allow the federal government or agency thereof to use such turnpikes

partly or exclusively during the existence of such emergency, provided, that the federal government agrees in such contract to pay, during the term of such contract, an amount sufficient, when added to any tolls collected, to meet all operating and maintenance expenses, interest payments, and the minimum sinking fund and reserve requirements of the trust agreement for the turnpike covered by the contract.

(q) All meetings of the Authority shall be open public meetings, and all records shall be public records, except when considering personnel or litigation.

SECTION 22. AMENDATORY Section 6 of Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1357 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, is amended to read as follows:

Section 6. A. Any person, other than a municipal corporation, who violates Section 3, 4, or 8 of ~~this act~~ Enrolled Senate Bill No. 1357 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature is guilty of a Schedule G felony pursuant to the state sentencing matrix, if the offense occurs on or after the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes. If the offense is committed prior to the effective date of Section 20.1 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the crime shall be punishable by incarceration in the custody of the Department of Corrections for not more than ten (10) years. A violator shall, upon conviction, be subject to a fine not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) per violation.

B. The Attorney General or any district attorney may file a criminal information or seek a criminal indictment to enforce the provisions of subsection A of this section.

SECTION 23. AMENDATORY Section 612, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, is amended to read as follows:

Section 612. The provisions of Sections 1 through 25, 27, 32, 33, 46 through 50, 54, 56 through 62, 64 through 66, 68 through 75, 85 through 108 and 110 through 603, 607, and 610 and 611 of this act, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, and Section 109, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, as amended by Section 1 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, shall become effective July 1, 1998 1999.

SECTION 24. AMENDATORY Section 45, Chapter 293, O.S.L. 1997, is amended to read as follows:

Section 45. Sections 36 and 38 of this act, Chapter 293, O.S.L. 1997, shall become effective July 1, 1998 1999.

SECTION 25. AMENDATORY Section 28, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997, is amended to read as follows:

Section 28. Sections 1, 2, 4, 5, 11, 12, 15, 17, 18 and 19 of this act, Chapter 333, O.S.L. 1997, shall become effective July 1, 1998 1999.

SECTION 26. AMENDATORY Section 8, Chapter 420, O.S.L. 1997, is amended to read as follows:

Section 8. The provisions of Sections 2, Chapter 420, O.S.L. 1997, and 5 of this act, Chapter 420, O.S.L. 1997, as last amended by Section 3 of Enrolled House Bill No. 2616 of the 2nd Session of the 46th Oklahoma Legislature, shall become effective July 1, 1998 1999.

SECTION 27. AMENDATORY Section 606, Chapter 133, O.S.L. 1997, is amended to read as follows:

Section 606. 22 O.S. 1991, Section 991a-4, as last amended by Section 67 16 of this act, is hereby repealed effective July 1, 1999 July 1, 2000.

SECTION 28. It being immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an emergency is hereby

declared to exist, by reason whereof this act shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval.

Passed the House of Representatives the 17th day of June, 1998.

Speaker of the House of
Representatives

Passed the Senate the 19th day of June, 1998.

President of the Senate